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l. Acronyms nd (i lossarl' of 'l'erm.s

a) Ac ronyms

a

UON/t

AKICP

IPSAS

Kshs

B

FM

SAS

P

P

Board of Management

lnstitute of Certitled Public Accountants of Kenya

lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kenya Shillings
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2. Kcy Entity Information and Management

a) Background information

Atcohotic drink control Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability from

Mombasa County Liquor t,icensing Act on 20 l4 and administered by the Mombasa County

Director of Liquor Control, subject to the general directions ol the County Executive Member in

charge of Department ol Trade, Tourism & lnvestment. The Fund is wholly owned by the County

Government of Mombasa and is domiciled in Kenya.

The fund's objective is to-

o Regulate the production, sale, distribution, consumption and outdoor advertising of

alcoholic drinks.

r Ensure that the production, sale, distribution and consumption oIalcoholic drinks conform

to certain health, social and infrastructural requirements.

r Protect underage persons tiom access and exposure to liquor.

o Protect consumers of liquor tiom misleading and deceptive inducements.

. For measures to prevent illicit trade in alcoholic drinks.

. Provide tor public participation in the regulation of alcoholic drinks.

. Promote public education on the [awful dealings in alcoholic drinks

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the Fund is to-

. Receive and consider apptications for liquor licenses in accordance with the Act.

. Provide advice to the County Executive Committee on matters of policy relating to control

and regulation of liquor.

. Collaborating with relevant govemment agencies lor effective implementation of the Act.

. Carrying out public education in collaboration with other public and private players on

liquoi control in the CountY.

. Involvement with citizen through public participation in matters related to liquor control.

. Performing any other functions as may be assigned to by the County Executive Member

from time to time.

J
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c)

Adm
section will be applicable for Public Funds that have a Board of Trustees/Funcl

nistration Committee. lnpu! names of all the members who held offce during the period)

(hi

4

n

Taib AbdulrahmanChairman of the Board

Ag. ChieiOtticer'fourism, Culture & Tradc Fakih Sheba Hassan
Ag. Chiel Olticer Financc Ayub Ridhiwani
Other trustees/Commitlee Members John Musuva, County Chief Otlcer-

Education

Pauline Oginga County Chief Oflicer -
Public Health.

Eng. Albert Keno County Chief Otficer-

lnfrastructure and Public Work

Amir Ghalib Ag. Chief Officer,

Department ol Environment, Waste

Management and Energy

Ali Sharilt County Chief Ofticer -

Departments of Land and Physical

Planning

Joyce Ng'ondi Mwamburi,-[ndependent

Member,,: Eddah Soi,-lndependent

Member, : David Ngamau Gitau

Independent Member, Julius Owino

Ndeke lndependent Member,

I{itah Shah,-lndependent Member

Fund Manager/ Administrator Dr. Veronica Gitonga

Board of 'Irustees/F und Administration Contnrittee

Nlme Pos it irin

5



I
Nlomboso Coun
Annual l{epoit

ly Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
and Financial Statements for thc Ycar ended June -10, 202-1

d) Key Managenrent Steam

(tnclude all positions regarded as top management for the Fund)

e) Registered Offices

P.O. Box 90440-80100

Betting Control & Licensing Building

Mombasa, KENYA

f) Fund Contacts

Telephone: (254) 4l -23 I l5l I

E-mait : countysec@mombasa. go.ke

Website: www. mombasacountY. go. ke

g) Fund Bankers

Central Bank oI Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Kenya Commercial Bank
Treasury Square Branch,

P.O. Box 90254

GPO 80r00

Mombasa, Kenya

)
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Ayub RidhiwaniAg. Chiet Olficer FinanceI

Dr. Veronica GitongaF und Manager/ Administrator2

Fakih Sheba HassanAg. C.O Tourism, Culture & TradeJ

Rcf Namc l'osition



I

lt

mhos Coun4, Alcoholic Drink ('ontrol l.-rttrd
nual lleport and'F'inancial Statements [or the year ended June 10, 2023

K Entit-v" and tVlanagcnren t ((iontinued)

h) Indepe ndent Auditors

Auditor General
Office oI the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

i) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue

O. Box 401 12

ity Square 00200
airobi, Kenya

ounfy Attorney

e County Attomey

ffice olthe County Attomey

ima House -6th Floor

ounty Government ol Mombasa

6

A

j)



I
illomhasa C'oun

Annual lteport
t),Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
and Financial Statements for th6 year ended Junc 30, 202-i

3. Iloard of -frustees/ Fund Administration Committee (Or Any Othcr Corporate

()ovcrnance Body for The Fund)

Board Member: Ayub Ridhiwani

Ag.County Chiel Of ticer-Finance & Economic

Planning

He ls a Kenyan prof'essional with extensive

experience in financial management and

administration. He holds a BBA in Finance,

Banking, and Management from Kampala

University and is currently pursuing an MBA IN

operation Management at the University oINairobi

I

Board Member: Eng. Albert Keno

County Chief Ottrcer- [nfrastructure and Public Work

Eng. Albert Torori Keno Joined the EHCSL MC

Board in F'ebruary 2022. He is an experienced and

accomplished Kenyan Professional CiviI Engineer

who graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Civil

Engineering) (2nd Class Hons) from the University oI

Nairobi in 1987.

Eng. Keno is Registered with the Engineers Board of

Kenya (EBK), a Corporate Member of the Institution

of Engineers of Kenya (lEK) and a Holder of a valid

Practising Certiticate by the Engineers Board of

Kenya (EBK).

He has a wide experience in civil / structural

engineering works of over 35 years majorly in areas

2
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olroads, buildings and water gained through his long

service in several Govemment Departments in Kenya.

Board Member: Fakih Sheba Hassan

Ag. County ChielOtftcer - Department of Tourism,
Culture, and Trade

Masters in Business Administration, Higher National
Diploma in Human Resource Mgt. , CPS section 5.

Senior Management Course-KSG.

J

I

Fund Administrator: Dr. Veronica Gitonga

Director- Directorate of Liquor Control and Licensing

B.ED- Maths, Economics.

M.A Project Planning & Management

PhD in Economics
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Board Member: Amir Ghalib

Ag.Chiel Officer, Department of Environment,

Waste Management and Energy

Bachelors of [nformation Technology. Masters in

Businees Administration Specializing in Iluman

Resource.Currently pursing PHD in Business

Administration. More I5 years Working as a

Director.

)

Board Member: Ali Shariff

County Chief Ofticer - Departments of Land and

Physical Planning

Masters ol Science in Mobile Telecommunications

and lnnovations

Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical and

Telecommunications Engineering

6

Board Member: Pauline Oginga

County ChielOttlcer - Public Health

Master's in Public t{ealth

Post Graduate Diploma in Monitoring and

Evaluation

Bachelor's Degree in Public Health

Diploma in Nursing
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II

I

Board Member: Joyce Ng'ondi Mwamburi

She is a Kenyan resident, [D holder no. 10754287

and resides in Mombasa. She did her A-Level at

Tarasaa High School and managed to attain I

principal and I subsidiary. She later joined a

Front Office apprenticeship with block hotels

tiom December 1992 to December 1991. She

later did several certificate courses e.g public

relations, introduction to computers,systems and

applications, certiftcate in advocacy, competence

and training programmes, certificate in social

disloguein work place issues and lastly a

certificate in administrative assistant course.

In 1995 to 2002, she worked in Sun n Sands as a

Receptionist then to a reservations clerk later to

an assistant Guest Relations officer.

Ln2002 to 2003, she was a Guest Relations olficer

at African Safari Club.

2008 to 2009 was a Guest Relations Officer at

Leisure Lodge.

2009 to 20ll was an operations Manager at

Makeeyu Resort.

2012 to 2017 worked as a secretary/

administrative Asst at KAFIC.

2019 to 2020 worked as an Executive Officer

with Perak coast Chapter.
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8

Board Member:Eddah Soi

An experienced membership service-oriented

individual whose role is to aid in marketing

groMh, ofl'er advocacy representation, lead

infbrmation communicator on available updates

and training opportunities to strengthen the

membership retention and lorming partnerships

link with intemaI and extemal stakeholders

including local and National govemment flor the

benefit ol KAIIC Association members to

promote a healthy business environment and

competition for Kenya's hospitality. Works as

Membership Othcer at Kenya Association of

Hotel keepers and Caterers, KAHC. A position

she has held since 2018.

9

Board Member: DAVID NGAMAU GITAU

Member PERAK,Secretary Mombasa

CEO Singawa Limited

GM Nashvitle Restaurant and Resort

BSC Actuarial Science

Currently pursuing MBA

ll
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Board Member:Julius Owino Ndeke

Academic qualift cations, Bsc Tourism

Management, Diploma in tourism Management.

I I yrs working experience in Tourism industry.

Currently CEO Kenya Coast Tourist Association

t2

I
I
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Chairman of the Board: Taib Abdulrahman

Mr.-taib Abdulrahman Basheeib is a renowned

anti-drug lcon in the country and globally.

Wealth experience in drug; Rehabilitation and

treatment program. He is a trained addiction

counselor and a nadaac certified addiction

specialist. Diploma in Counseling Psychology

and vast experience in management and training.

He is the current Executive Director, Reachout

Centre Trust, an organization initiated early 2003

to provide preventive and treatment services to

people aflected by or vulnerable to drug abuse

and HIV/AIDS in the Coastal Region of Kenya.

He has over 20 years vast experience in anti-drug

activism dedicating his efforts in harm reduction

interventions for People Who Use Drugs-PWUD

and advocating lor universal health rights of the

PWUD, further specializing in project/program

design, Management, Capacity Building and

Advocacy in the Kenya Harm Reduction

Network as the national secretary.
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Board Member: Hitah Shah

Diploma in Computer Science

Businesswoman

Manager in EWCA Marketing Kenya Limited

li Board Member: John Musuva

Bom;241121197 |

County Chief Otficer- Education

John ,,vas appointed on the position in January

2020.tle holds a Global MBA in Finance and

Marketing tiom Eastern University, Phitadelphia

USA and a Bachelor of Commerce degree in

Business Administration fiom Daystar

University. He has over 28 years' experience in

various sectors in Kenya and USA. He has becn

with the County Govemment of Mombasa tiom

2014 to date. He is also the acting CEO & F'und

Administrator of E,[imu Fund and is responsible

of the day-to-day management, coordination and

administration of the activities of the Elimu

Fund-
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-l Vlanagement Team

I

Board Member: Ayub Ridhiwaani

Ag. County Chiel Officer- Finance and

Economic Planning

He is a Kenyan professional with extensive

experience in tinancial management and

administration. He holds a BBA [N Finance,

Banking, and Management flrom Kampala

University and is currently pursuing an MBA IN

operation Management at the University of
Nairobi.

I )

Fund Administrator: Dr. Veronica Gitonga

Director- Directorate o[ Liquor Control and

[,icensing

B.ED- Maths, Economics.

M.A Project Planning & Management

PhD in Economics

I )

I

Board Member: Fakih Sheba Hassan

Ag.County Chiei Officer - Department of
Tourism, Culture, and Trade

Masters in Business Administration, Higher

National Diploma in Human Resource Mgt ,

CI)S section 5. Senior Management Course-

KSG.

te: The Fund Administrator willfeature under both the 'Board'and 'Management'
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5. Board/Fund Chairperson's Report

It is my pleasure to present, on behalIof the Board of Trustees, the Mombasa County Alcoholic

Drink Control F'und financial statements for the year ended iOth June 202i. The financial

statements present the financia[ performance oIthe fund over the past year'

The Fund saw surplus increase to KES. 39,21 1,450 compared with Financial year 2021/2022. The

ner Assets for Financial year 20221202i is KES. I 15,518,i59. The Revenue ofthe Fund increased

by KES. I i,5 12,450 as compared to year 202112022. This was attributed to improved compliance

with liquor [aw's by Mombasa resident thus they avoided the levies. However, we had few cases

where some retai[ owners petitioned the levies in Court o[ Law.

As peopte are not going to forsake drinking any time soon, there was need to encourage moderate

drinking and help few who may become alcoholics. This was to be achieved by enforcing control

mechanism through licensing to only those that obey the stipulated laws.

lt has been expressed that the Mombasa County Liquor Licensing Act does not define the functions

of the Fund and provide tbr winding up procedures. These and any other shortcomings in the law

witl be looked at and rectif red.

Board and Management Changcs

The board has noted in proflessional view that some recommendations from financial consultant

key among them the automation ol the fund's operations and the presentation of the Funds

accounts in accrual basis as opposed to cash-based reporting. The organization arrangement is

expected to enhance efficiency in service delivery.

The totat expenditures during the period amounted to KES. 1,946,454 which was inclusive o[ the

administration expenses.

0
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[' tu re outlook

e year 202312024 looks brighter. The tund focus is tooking to buitd a robust and sustainable

d with a motivated worktbrce and structures that enhance eflficiency and eft'ectiveness in the

SC vice delivery. T'he tund looks torward to continued support ttom the county govemment, local

aspiring potitical leaders. with other development partners so that the Fund can realize its

date.

A precia tio n

ke this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the Mombasa County

vemment, stakeholders, management, staff and t'ellow Trustees lor their continued support

ich made us execute our mandate in managing the Fund. I look florward tbr another fabulous

continued support in the financial year 2023/2024il

ish to thank all stakeholders who are giving us support to pursue this worthwhile cause and it
ls y beliet, rve shall have residcnts who drink responsibly

Flo Datc a8, o9 , 2e 2\anle

hairperson of the Board/Fund

ll
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6. Report of the Fund Administrator

In accordance with section 22. (l) olthe Mombasa County l.iquor Licensing Act 2014, which

states that the Director shall ensure that the accounts lor the Fund and the annual tinancial

statements relating to those accounts comply with the requirements of the Public Finance

Management Act and the Public Audit Act.

I am therefore gtad to oversee the presentation ol the frnal statements for the financial year ended

j6th June 2023 which have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards prescribed

and published by the Accounting Standards Board tiom time to time.

Revenue Collection

I am pleased to inform the Board and other stakeholders that we have been improving on our

tlnancial collection steadily as presented by the graph below;

FY 2020 - 2027, FY 2021- 2022, FY 2022 - 2023

t9.211.450

25.699,0m

19,1r0,000

a)?o m2l 2021 - 2o2? ?o22- A?3

4C$

,5U

lo

2SM

201.1

l5u

lr

SM

OI

n
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lnr lementation challcnges of strategic objectives were:

lns fftcient support lrom NACADA; Poor working relations between the National and County

Go ernment due to some Grey area in the Act; lack ol key staffs especially in Accounting,

Au iting, Procurement and other technical areas; inability to address several complains tiom the

pu lic against I iquor outlcts flouting the Act due to poor work rclations between the two levels of
Go ernment; reluctance by the National Govemment to recognize Mnazi drinks as legal Liquor.

value-tbr-money achievements, the Directorate successfully engaged in pubtic

itization,workshops and crackdowns on illegal liquor outlets to educate stakeholders and

ic on implementation of the Act;won court cases which were brought by liquor outlet

On

Lic

SC

pub

o tors; support youth and cultural activities on anti-alcohol abuse thematic activities including

reh bilitation;Automation on liquor Iicensing procedure. This will enhance effective collection of
the venue and reduce cases ol revenue loss hence sustainabilitv of the Fund

Ke risk management strategies is basically repealing the current Mombasa County Liquor

nsing Act ol 2014 to address the inadequate legislation.

Fut re Progranrs;

1'hc Fund is looking tbrward to carrying out advocacy and prevention programs on alcohol and

dru abuse control as budgeted in the F Y 202312024. Rehabilitation and treatment olalcoholic and

dru abuse addicts, Amendment ol Mombasa alcoholic control act 2014. The funds will also be

USC [or.training and capacity building olthe Board and Fund's Secretariat

Fin ncial Performancc

ln year ended 30th June 202i, the tund had projected revenues of KES. 37,294,404. out of the

ted revenue, the fund was able to realize KES 39,2 I 1,450 in actual collections, representing

4oh performance. In the table below, we present an analysis of revenue performance during

the ar

proJ

105
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Revenue classifica tio n Revenue budget (KES) Actual

(KES)

Rea lization

(%)

lievenue KES KES

Public contributions and donations 0 0 0%

Transflers tiom County Govt 0 0 0%

Interest income 0 0 0%

Fines, penalties and other levies 37,294,404 19,21 I,450 t05.t4%

Total Income 37,294,404 39,2 I I,450 105.1{%

It is my believe that the annual financial statements presents tairly the state o[ affairs ol the

Mombasa Co vAl olic Drinks Control Fund

Signed

I)r. Veronica r tonga

F unds Administrator

II
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nual Rcport and Financi:rl Statcntcnts for th'c

statement oI l)crformance against the ()ounty Fund's l)rcdctermined objectives

year cnded .lune 30, 202-j

T ough the county development plan on the ease ofdoing business, the county has adopted the

au mation ol business services using E-citizen system for the application for the liquor license

N n timely disbursement ol funds by' the national government continues to be a challenge as this

le to delay in execution ol program planned activities thus compromising service delivery

t] get implementation continues to be a challenge due to; unrealized [oca[ revenues, delayed

ex hequer releases, and tedious procurement bureaucracies. In addition, the County Govemment

I continue to provide leadership and coordination in county development planning, policy

[o ulation and management, designing effective, efficient and secure systems of collecting

re nue, to prudently mobilize and manage resources while ensuring compliance with policies,

St dards and procedures

ln roduction

S tion 164 (2) (Q of the Public [rinance Management Act, 20 l2 requires rhar, at the end of each

fi ncial year, the Accounting olficer when preparing financial statements of each County

Go ernment entity in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector

Ac ounting Standards Board includes a statemcnt ol the county government entity's performance

ag inst predetcrmined objectives

'th key development objectives olthe F'und as per the strategic plan for (2022-2023) are to

a)

b)

c)

Public Sensitization on implementation of the Act

Revenue collection

Develop Human Resource

20
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['rogress on attainment of Strategic developnrcnt objectives

Belo"v we rovide thc ro ress on attarntn the stated ob ectlves

Public
Sensitization

Public sensitization
tbrums done in six
sub counties

lnter-agency meeting
hetd in the county

Mombasa county
Training of ;

l. Administration
offtcers

2. Primary and
Secondary
school
teachers

3. Members of
Clergy

On ADSA.

No. oIADA
cases identi[ied
and sensitized.

No of inter-
agency
meetings held

No. of
administration
officers trained
Training ol
primary and
Secondary
school Teachers
on ADSA
Training of
members of the
clergy on
ADSA

Create
awareness. On
the harmlul
effects oI
alcohol and
substance abuse

ldentily the
emerging trends
and Prevalence
in ADSA-
Alcohol, Drugs
and Substance
Abuse

(a)Protect the

health of the

individual in
the light of
the dangers
of excessive
consumption of,

alcoholic
drinks;

(b)Protect the

consumers of
alcoholic
drinks from
misleading or
deceptive
inducements
and inform
them of the

risks of
excessive
consumption o f
alcoholic
drinks;

(c)Protect the

health of
persons under
the age of
eighteen years

by preventing
their access to
alcoholic
drinks;

(d)lnform and

educate the
public on the

harmful
health,

o

2l

Pe rfrlrnrahceIndicator0 rrtco ni c

Assist the

ministry/
govemment in
managing
Atcohol, drug
and substance
abuse through
early detection
and
intervention
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n

economic and
soc ial
consequences
of the
consumption of
alcoho lic
drinks;

(e)Adopt and

implement
effective
measures to
eliminate illicit
trade in
alcohol
including
smuggling,
i llicit
manulacturing
and

counterfeiting;

(t)Promote
and provide
for treatment
and
rehabilitation
programmes fbr
those addicted
or dependent on
alcoholic
drinks; and
(g)Promote
research and

dissemination
of information
on the effects
of alcoholic
drink
consumption, in
particular the
health risks that
may arise
therefrom.

F'acilitate the

implementation
o[ [iquor act
and other
related policies
Create
partnerships
with
stakeholders,
line ministries
and
development
partners

Providing
support services
which include
counselling,
Treatment and
rehabilitation

Developed
specific
information,
education and
communication
materials on
ADSA Control

Formu Iate
policy on
Alcohol, Drug
and Substance
Abuse
Review the
policies
periodically

Establish
counse lling
desk and
resource centre
No. ofpersons
treated

-Amendment of
Mombasa alcoholic
Drinks control,20l4.
-F'ormulate policy on
alcohol, drugs and
substance Abuse
-Public participation
meetings

Carried out Surveys
on ADSA
Planned and Budgeted
for treatment and
rehabilitation
programmes

Providing support
system that mitigate
against ADSA
Empowering
employees with
relevant information
and knowledge on
effects of Alcohol,
Drugs and Substance
Abuse
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Collecting
Revenuc

(a)Such licence
and other t'ees

as may be

payable under
this Act;

(b)Such sums

as may be

realized tiom
property
tbrfeited to the

Govemment
under this Act;

(c)Sums
received,
including
contributions,
gifts or grants
from or by way
of testamentary
bequest by any
pcrson;

(d)Moneys
eamed or
arising lro m

any investment
olthe Fund;

(e)All other
sums which
may in any
manner become
payable to, or
vested in, the

Fund.

Compliance
with Mombasa
alcoholic drink
acr 20 l4

No of llquor
outlets
Licensed

Collected Kshs
i9,21 I,450
FY 2022t2023

Human
Resource
Development

Capacity Buitd
the Stafland
Board.
(a) The County
shal[ promote
public
awareness

about the
health

Making
provisions for
early detection
and
intervention
mechanisms
through
capacity
building and

l.ldentify skill
gaps

2.Select target
group
3.tdentify
relevant courses

Participate in training
programmes provided
by the National
Authority Campaign
Against Drug Abuse
on Alcohol Drugs
Substance Abuse
Control

o
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consequences,
addictive nature
and mortal
threat posed

by excessive
alcoholic drink
consumption
through a
comprehens ive
nation-wide
education and
information
campaign
conducted by
the
Govemment
through the
relevant
Ministries,
departments,
authorities and
other agencies
including the
relevant non-
govemmental
organizations
and civil
society.

(b) The
education and
in formation
campaign
rc fbrred to in
subsection ( I )
shall focus on
the family as

the basic social
unit and shall
be carried out
in all schools
and other
institutions of
leaming, all
prisons, remand
homes and

creation of a
conduc ive
env ironment

Create
awareness on
the harmful
et'fects of
alcohol, drugs,
and substance
abuse at
schools,
Colleges,
universities,
Vocational
institutions

No ol
institutions
visited.

Created linkages and
referraI systems
Sensitize and create
awareness on ADSA.
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Commitment to
maintain an alcohol,
drugs and substance
lree county

No. of
administration
offlcers trained
Training of
primary and

Secondary
schooI Teachers
on ADSA
Training of
members of the
clergy on
ADSA

Create
partnerships
with
stakeholders,
line ministries
and

deve [opment
partners and
relevant clvil
societies groups

other places

of
confi nement,
amongst the

disciplined
forces, at all
places ol work
and in all
communities in
Kenya.

(c) The
relevant
agency in
collaboration
with the

Govemment
and the

relevant c ivil
society groups

shall provide
training.
sensitization
and awareness
programmes
on alcoholic
drink control
for community
workers, social
workers, media
professionals,
educators,
decision
makers,
administrators
and other
concemed
persons for
proper
information,
dissemination
and education
on alcoholic
drinks.

25

o



nrbasu County Alcoltolic Drink Control P-uttd
A nual lLcport and Financial Statements foi the year ended Junc 30, 2023

ll

(d) In
conducting the
education and
information
campaign
referred to in
this section, the
relevant agency
and
Government
shall ensure
the
invoIvement
and
participation
of individuals
and groups
affected by
misuse of
alcoholic
drinks.

(e) Every local
authority in
co Iaboration
rvith the civil
society and
the relevant
agency, shall
conduct
education and
information
campaigns on
alcoholic drink
within its area

urisdictionof

Ustablish a
corporate
culture and
practices that
prevent and
pre-empt
alcohol, drugs
and substance
abuse in the
county

No of inter-
agency
meetings held

Regular inter-agency
meetings.
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

a. No. of Board meetings

The Board held 2 meetings in the year under review whose major agenda under discussion

included: 2O2l/2022 Audit reports; Crackdown on unlicensed liquor outlets; Proposals of

202312024 budget; ivlombasa County E-services challenges 202212023, Liquor Licensing

progress and renewal o[the board members. The quorum lor the meetings wzls attained.

b. Succession Plan

The Board has an elaborate succession plan where incoming ofticers are given 6 months'

probation period to undergo induction while under close supervision of the out-going officers.

The Board has a lit'etime of 3 years (renewable once).

c. Board Charter

The Board has initiated the process of coming up with a service charter to enable the public to

understand its mandate.

d. Process of appointment and removal of trustees

The trustees are appointed by the CECM- Department in charge of the Liquor [-icensing

tbr period o[ 3 years (renewable once)

Ilole and functions of thc Board Committee mcmbcrse

The Board has the tbllowing mandate:

. To receive and consider applications for liquor licenses in accordance with the Act;

e To advise the County Executive Committee on matters o[ policy relating to control and

regulation of liquor;

. To collaborate with relevant government agencies for effective implementation oIthe Act;

r To carry out public education in collaboration with other public and private players on

liquor control in the County;

. To facilitate citizen participation in matters related to liquor control;

o To perform any other function as may be assigned to it by the County Executive Member

as the County Executive Member may from time to time determine.

o
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f. Induction and training, Administration committee members and member's

perfo rma nce

In order to enhance pertbrmance, thc board members wil[ undertake training at Kenya

School of Government (Mwongozo) as budgeted for in the Financial Year 202212023.|n

addition, the key management team will also undergo Management and Strategic

Leadership Courses at Kenya SchooI olGovemment.

C. Conflict of interest

Every member of the board with a personal interest in an issue coming betbre the Board,

will be required to declare interest and will not be entitled to vote on the matter. The Fund

Manager shall have the right to require his opinion to be recorded in the minutes if the

decision being made is contrary to his advice or the Fund Act.

Board remuneration

The Board Committee members receive sitting allowances as contained in the Salary

Remuneration Commission Boards and Committees A[lowance Circular issued from time

to time.

Ethics and conduct as well as governance audit u ndertaken: -

-Good Corporate Govemance

lt is set out as the moral health ol an organization to evaluate the overall integrity and

embraces individual responsibility, social equity and political responsibility. The Fund

incorporate good govemance through; routine intemal audits, risk management, reporting

through maintenance o[ books of account, use of management system in collecting data

and revenue collection.

-Accountability

The committee members ensure transparency and disclosure of the fund activities

ll
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9. .\Ianagemenl Discussion and Analysis

Revenue generated through online licensing ol Iiquor outlets as shown on chart and graph

ONLINE LI OUOR I,ICENSINC II.E VENUE COLLECTED PER

IVIONTII BETWEEN ,IULY 2022 AND JUNE 2023

Month
Jul 2022 746,000.00 /=

Au 2022 494,000.00 /=

Sept 2022 696,000.00 /=
155,000.00 /=

Nov 2022 350,000.00 /=

Dec 2022

Iao 2023 82,000.00 /:
Feb 2021 4,567,000.00 /=

Mar 2023 14,518,000.00 /:
A r 2023
Ma 2023 j,405,000.00 /=

Jun 2023 1,178,450.00 /=

Total 19,2 1 I,450/:
APPI,ICA'TIONS 889

Amount KES.

The management held three meetings in the ftnancial year under review whose main agenda

touched on the prospects of raising revenue. [n two ol the meetings it was resolved that

enlorcement measures should be taken on unlicensed liquor outlets to increase revenue.

The menrbers also discussed on the ways to reduce challenges faced by the liquor outlets on the

issue olusing the e - licensing platform.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

r The fund's core operating activity has been oloffering license to operate liquor businesf

within Mombasa County Regulate the production, sale, distribution, consumption and

outdoor advertising ol alcoholic drinks. The County Govemment was to release funds in

the FY 202212023and has embarked on reimbursement process in accordance to PFM Act

hence supportive.

Employecs

29

Oct 2022

4,5 18,000.00 /=

8,304,000.00 /=
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II man capital is a critical ingredient towards ensuring rcalisation ol our key strategic objectives

nuai ll.eport and Financial Statements for the ycar endcd .lune 30, 202-1

an mandate. As our stakeholders increase their expectations, it is imperative to ensure adequate

motivated human resource capacity is availabte to provide services.an

D

st

st

ring the year, the lund was understa[t'ed and the Trustees have decided to review its organization

cture that will see some statT being hired to steer the funds vision, mission, objective and

tegies forward and grorv its earning and portfolio thereby increasing efticiency and

ctiveness to its services to its stakeholders.c

mt

The

M

t)u ing the FY 202212023. the lund will embark on enhanced stakeholder's sensitization awareness

ca paigns on underage persons from access and exposure to liquor, consumers ol liquor from

eading and deceptive inducements, prevent illicit trade in alcoholic drinks, public participation

rnt e regulation olalcoholic drinks, public education on the tawtut dealings in alcoholic drinks

Th Trustees will contract a qualified firm to drali this policy manual which witl be approved by

the oard

I,lnt ty's key projects or investments decision implemented or ongoing

Fund has embarked on engaging relevant agencies in collaboration with the Govemment and

the levant civiI society groups to provide training, sensitiz-ation and awareness programmes on

alco olic drink control fbr community workcrs, social workers, media professionals, educators,

deci ion makers, administrators and other concerned persons tbr proper information,

dis ination and education on control oIalcohol and drug abuse

F'u n 's compliance with statutory requirements

-l-he und fully complies with atl statutory requirements as guided by the Fund Act, Public Finance

gement Act and the County Government Act.

TI
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10. Fl,nviron mental and Susta ina bility Reporting

The fund is committed to ensuring compliance with regulatory and supervisory corporate

govemance requirements. Essential to the establishment of a corporate governance lramework in

the tund is a tbrmal govemance structure with the board of Trustees at its apex. The operations o[

the tund are governed by Mombasa County Liquor [.icensing Act on 2014. The structure is

designed to ensure an informed decision-making process based on accurate reporting to the board.

provision of education and intbrmation through publications and media advertising outlets on

issues such as personal and/or parental responsibility, moderation, under-age drinking, health

eflects of drinking atcohot through partnership with private manuflacturers and retailers within the

county.

Through activities designed to influence policy making regarding consumption and production of

alcoholic drinks in the county. Such activities include and not limited to publication and

dissemination olpolicy documents e.g. reviews of alcohoI policy issues, charters, working papers

and guides to policy implementation and policy tool kits; support through partnership in charities

that are active in alcohol policy implementation.

Atcohotic drink control tund exists to transflorm tives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind

everylhing u,e do. l'remendous el'fort has been made in addressing ADA to ensure the county's

social, economic and potitical stability necessary for the attainment oIthe Kenya Vision 2030 and

SDGs. Moving forward, the Directorate intends to focus on tbur Strategic Pillars in its ADA policy.

This will be:

' Demand reduction;

' Supply Suppression;

' Harm reduction; and,

. Co-ordination framework, legislation, implementation flramework and M&E.

Within the four strategic piltars, key interventions will address the problem of alcohol and drug

abuse, further take into account lactors that predispose individuals, lamilies and communities to

the risk of alcohol and drug abuse. Interventions shall be scientitic; evidence based and age

appropriate targeting all members of the community. Stakeholders shall be included in the

implementation of the policy includlng the design of appropriate interventions.

o
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A

e Directorate olliquor control and licensing is estabtished by Mombasa county liquor licensing

l, 2014. It comprises ol Director, Chairman and twelve members appointed by the county

ex cutive member of the Dcpartment of Trade, -l'ourism 
and Investment

T Trustees submit their report together with tne audited ftnancial statements for the year ended

30,2023, which show rhe state of the Fund aifairs.Ju

l0 I Principal activities

1'h r principal activities oIthe Fund are;

o Received and considered applications tbr tiquor license in accordance with the act.

o Advised the County Executive Committee on matter oIpolicy relating to control a

regulation of Iiquor.

, carried out public educarion in collaboration with pubtic & private player on liquor

control in the county

t0. Performance

1'he performance ofthe F'und lor the year ended June i0, 202i, are set out on page I

l0 Trustees

The members olthe Board of J'rustee / Administration Committec who served during the year are

sho on page 4

10.-t Auditors

Thc uditor General is responsible lor the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article

229

out he audit ol the Alcohotic [)rink Control fund tbr the yearlperiod ended June -i0, 2023 in

acco dance to section 2i ol'the Public Audit Act,20l5 which empowers the Auditor General to

appo t1 a ditor to audit on his behall

I] I the Board

Nanr : Taib Abdulrahman

of the BoardChai

Date

ll

Y ,7,o2 4
)
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12. Statement of Management's Responsibilities

Scction 167 olthe Public Finance Management Act, 20 l2 requires that, at the end of each financial

year, rhe Administrator o[ a County Public [rund established by Mombasa County Liquor

Licensing Act,2014, shall prepare financial statements lor the Fund in accordance with the

standards and tbrmats prescribed by the Pubtic Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Administrator o[ the County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund is responsible flor the preparation

and presentation of the Fund's financlal statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of

aflairs of the Fund lor and as at the end ol the financial year ended on June 30, 202i. This

responsibility includes:

(i) Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

etTective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose rvith reasonable accuracy at any time

thc tinancial position olthe fund;

(iii)Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the tinancial statements, and ensuring that they are lree flrom material misstatements,

whether due to enor or fraud;

(iv)Saleguarding the assets of the tund;

(v)Selecting and apptying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi)Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances'

The Administrator of the County Alcohotic Drink Control Fund accepts responsibility lor the Fund's

financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates, in conlormity with International Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manncr required by the PFM Act,2012 and Mombasa

County Liquor Licensing Act, 20 14. 
-thc Administrator of the Fund is of the opinion that the Fund's

financial statements give a true and lair view of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial

year ended June 30, 2023,and o[the Fund's financial position as at that date.

JI
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Administrator further conlirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained flor the

d, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's ftnancial statements as well as

adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

reparing the financial statements, the Administrator of the County Atcohotic Drink Control Fund

assessed the Fund's ability to continue as a going coficern and disclosed, as applicabte, matters

rel ing to the use of going concem basis of preparation of the financial statements

N ing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund witt not remain a

go concern tbr at least the next rwelve months lrom the date of this statement

A roval of the financial statements

Fund s financial statements were approved by the Board on 28, s'I ,202i and

st by

ArtF- iib'rt'q'tY"'
A inistrator of the Fund

ln
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n hu nci ng Aurtunta h i I itt'

EPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MOMBASA COUNTY ALCOHOLIC
RINKS CONTROL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

n unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
levant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and

overnance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial

eport of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo
NAIROBI

REAMBLE

year under review.

fhe three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

RepoRT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I

puatified Opinlon
I

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mombasa County Alcoholic
prinks Control Fund set out on pages 351o77, which comprise statement of financial

losition as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance, statement of
lhanges in net assets, stateinent of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget

lnd actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting



o
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows forthe yearthen ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with Mombasa County Liquor Licensing Ac! 2014 and the Public Finance
Managemenl Act,2012.

i) The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.115,518,359 in
respect of total net assets and liabilities whereas the only amount disclosed as a
financing item is accumulated surplus for the year amounting to Kshs.37,264,796
and total liabilities of Kshs.115,518,359 totalling lo 152,783,155, resulting in a
difference of Kshs.37,264,796 which has not been explained.

The statement of changes in net assets reflects a balance of Kshs.115,518,359
whereas the recalculated amount is Kshs.115,354,759 leading to unexplained
variance of Kshs. 1 63,600.

The statement of financial position reflects social benefits liabilities amounting to
Kshs.104,905,259. However, Management failed to provide supporting
documents for audit review.

ii)

iii)

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks
Control Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

During the year under review, the Fund realized revenue amounting to Kshs.39,211,450
against approved revenue budget of Kshs.37,294,404, resulting in over collection of
revenue by Kshs.1,917,046 or (5%) cf the budget amount. Similarly, the Fund incurred
Kshs.1 ,946,454 against an approved expenditure budget of Kshs.35,000,000 resulting in
under-absorption of Kshs.33,053,546 or 94o/o of the approved budget.

Report of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023

2

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 lnaccuracies in the FinancialStatements

Review of financial statements submitted for audit revealed errors as detailed below:



he overfunding and under expenditure may have impacted negatively on service
elivery to the public

y opinion is however, not modified in respect of this matter

ey Audit Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
ignificance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
port in the year under review

onclusion

required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
erformed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
nd Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
lse has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
pplied laMully and in an effective way.

asis for Conclusion

. lrregular Remittances to the County Revenue Fund

he statement of financial performance reflects Kshs.39,211,450 in respect of liquor
nsing fees and application fees collected through e-citizen portal (pesa flow) and

mitted to the County Revenue Fund (CRF). However, the remittances to the CRF were
contravention of the Mombasa County Liquor Licensing Act,2O14 which mandates the

und Management to collect and retain licenses and fees payable. As at the time of the
udit in October,2O23, the fees had not been refunded and banked in Mombasa County
lcoholic Drinks Control Fund bank account

addition, the County Revenue Fund bank statements reflected aggregation of revenues
hich included revenues from single business permits, outdoor advertising, fire
rtificates and other revenue streams.

the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Failure to Publish Granted Licenses in the County Gazette

ection 27 (7) of the Mombasa County Liquor Licensing Acl,2014 provides that all liquor
nses granted should be published in the County gazette. However, the County gazette

howing the licenses granted during the year was not provided for audit review

uring the year under review, the Mombasa County Alcoholic Control Fund Administrator
d not prepare quarterly financial statements as required under Section 168(1) of the
ublic Finance Management Act, 2012 which provides that the administrator of a County
ublic Fund established by the Constitution, an Act of Parliament or County legislation,

eport of the Auditor$eneral on Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30 June, 202 3

3

EPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
ESOURCES

the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Failure to Prepare Interim Financial Statements



shall prepare quarterly financial statements for the Fund in a form prescribed by the Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Failure to Provide an Approved Budget

The Fund Management did not provide for audit review, a budget showing estimates of
both expenditure and revenue but one that showed estimates of expenditure only, in excel
format. Further, evidence to confirm that the budget was approved by the Board and
forwarded to the Fund Administrator for onward transmission to the County Executive
Committee Member for Trade and the County Executive Committee Member for Finance
respectively was not provided for audit review.

This was contrary to Section 130 (1)(b)(iii) of the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012
which requires the County Executive Committee member for finance to submit to the
County Assembly the budget estimates that include all revenue allocations from the
national government over the medium term, including condrtional and unconditional
grants.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. Regulatory lnadequacies

The Management of Mombasa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund has not developed
regulations to provide for the establishment, management, operations or winding up of
the County Public Fund, Contrary to Section 116 (9) of the Public Finance Management
Acl,2012. Further, the Mombasa County Liquor Licensing Act, 2014 does not provide for
the preparation of budget estimates.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The Standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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sis for Conclusion

Lack of Audit Committee

previously reported, the Fund has not established an Audit Committee in line with
egulation 167(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments)
egulations,2015 which states that, each County Government entity shall establish an

the circumstances, existence of an effective internal controls and governance system
ould not be confirmed

Lack of Strategic Plan

s previously reported, the Management has not developed a Strategic Plan in line
h Regulation 30(2) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments)

egulations, 2015

n the circumstances, existence of an effective strategic direction of the Fund could not
e confirmed

sis for Conclusion

he audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The Standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Trustees

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
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a ldentify and assess the risks of material migstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a

31 January,2024
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mbaso County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
nual Rep ort and Financial Statements [or the ydar ended June 30, 2023

I . Statement oI Financial Performance for the Year Ended 30th June 2023

(the tes s out on pages xrr to xxx form an integral part of these Financial Statements)

Name :

Admin

Name: CPA Joshua Rume

Fund Accountant

ICPAK Member Number: 21152

A

tevenue From Non-Exchange Transactions

II

2

blic Contributions and Donations

ransfers From the County Govemment

25,699,000J 39,21|,450I ines, Penalties and Other Levies

25,699,00039,211,450

evenue From Exchange Transactions

4terest Income

)ther Income

25,699,00039,2 I 1,450otal Revenue

Expenses

6Employee Costs

8,654,0007 1,932,800Use of goods and services

30,79i8 t3,654Depreciation and Amortization Expense

9

Finance Costs

8,684,793L,946,454Total Expenses

Other Gains/Losses

l0

llGain /Loss on fair value of investments

37,264,996Surplus/(Deficit) for the Period

'[ n' \rra-,-r'\r rA 6;t'uP4l'
istrator of the Fund

35

I

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets

17,014,207



il|0 basfl Courrt)' Alcoltolic Drink Control Fund
An rral lleport and F'inancial Statemcnts for the year cniled Junc 30, 2023

14. tatemcnt of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

0

As ets

rren t AssetsC

Ca h and Cash uivalents t2 2,608 72,808
Cu
Ex

nt Portion oILong- Term Receivables From
han e Transactions r3

Prr ents l4
Inr ntones l5
lnr stments in financial assets l6
Tr tal current assets 2,609 1) 08

N

Prr , Plant and ul ment t7 I t7,501 131,155

Inl angible Assets l8
Lo Term Receivables from Exc e Transactionsn li I r 5,398,250 76,257,000
In estment Pro rt l9

Tc tal non- current assets I15,515,751 76,399,t55
Tt tal Assets 115,518,359 76,460,963

Liabilitics

Cr rrrent Liabilitics

ade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions 23 I 0,6 I 3, 100 8,654,000
Cr ent Portion of Borrowin 2t
Ernployee Benefit Obligations 22

,cial benefi t liabilities 23

Tr tal currcnt liabilitics 10,613,100 8,654,000

N on-Current Liabilities
Ltrng Term Portion of Borrowings 2l
N on-Current Employee Benefit Obligation 22

Sr rcial benefit liabilities 23 104,905,259 67,806,963

Total Liabilities I15,518,359 76,460,963

I15,518,359 76,,460,963

36

2022-2023I)c$criplion Notc
K.shs

2021-2022

KshS

n-Current Assets

S(



fulonrbusa County Alcoltolic Drink Control Fund
Annual Rcp ort and Financial Sthtcmcnts for the ycar cnded June 30' 2023

Net Assets

Revolvin Fund

Reserves

37,264,796Accumulated Su lus t7,0t4,207

76,460,963I15,5 18,359Total Net Assets and Liabilities

The accounting poticies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part

ol the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on l\' tr' 202i
and signed by

Name: Vej6
A<lministrator of t

;;c;'ffi;
he Fund J

Name: CPA Joshua Rume

Fund Accountant

ICPAK Nlember Numbcr: 21152

o
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Mombaso County Alcoholic Drink Control Funtl
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

15. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year cndecl 30'h .I une 2023

62,023,311 62,023,31t

Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period t'7,014,20'7 t'7,0t4,207

Funds Received During the Year (947,75s) (94'7,7ss)

Transfers ( ) ( )

Revaluation Gain

Balance As At 30 June (2022) 0 0 78,089,763 't8,089,763

Balance As At I July (2022) 0 0 78,089,763 78,089,763

Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 37,264,996 3'7,264,996

Funds Received During the Year

Transfers (-)

Revaluation Cain

Balance As At 30 June (2023) I15,5I8,359 I 15,51 8,359

Descri;ltion
Re volr irlg Iu rul

Ileyrtlu:r(iorr

Il csi rvc

Kslrs

.

,\t'r'rr nr rrlit(ctl surlllus 
_

I(shs

Balance As At I July (2021)



Mombasa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements lbr the year ended Junc J0' 2023

16. Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 June 2023

Total receipts

Cash flows from opbrating activities

Receipts

Public contributions and donations

Transfers from the county government

lnterest received

25,699,000Receipts from other operating activities

25,699,000

Payments

Fund administration expenses

70,200General expenses

Finance cost

70,,200 (4,244,640)24Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

( )( )
Purchase of properry, plant, equipment and

Intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

Proceeds from loan principal repayments

(-)l-,Loan disbursements paid out

(70200)Net cash flows used in investing activities

,t

39

I

l

1ti22:riTi
Notc

Kshs

2027-2022

ILshs

Other payments

(-)
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Proceeds from revolving fund receipts

Additional borrowings

Repayment of borrowings (-) (-)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (, G)
Net increase(decrease) in cash & cash

Eq uivalents (70,200) G)
Cash and cash equivalents at I July 72,808 72,808

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2,608 72,808
(PSASB has prescribed thc direct rnclhod ofcash florv preparEtron/ prcscn(alion lbr all cnrilies undcr thc IPSAS uccruEl basis ol accounting.)

n

4o



Mombasa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements lbr the year ended June 30,2023

17. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actuirl Amounts For 'Ihp Period

l=tl/c* 100d
"=1c-tl)

bil

Reven ue

(-)(-)
Public Contributions and
Donations

Transfers From County Govt
(-)Interest Income

t,917 ,046 lO5.l4Y"37,294,404 39,211,45037,294,404Other Income

l05.l,t%39,21 I ,450 1,9 17,04637,294,404G)31 ,294,404

Expenses

t77.39%1,862,600 812,6001,050,0001,050,000
Fund Administration
Expenses

0.25v,83,854 (3 3,866, 1 46)33,950,000(,33,9s0,000General Expenses

(-)(-)Finance Cost
5.56"h1,946,454 (34,6,18,,746)35,000,000G)35,000,000Total Expenditure

(34,970,592)37,264,9962,294,4042,294,404Surplus For the Period

Capital expenditure

4l

[inal brirlgct

Kshs Kshs

Ptiilir r rn it n Cc'

tlil'l'creucc.'.

Kshs

Tu,Utiliiatir-rn

c=(a+b)

Total Income
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Budget notes

1. The underutilization arises out ofnon-remittance oftunds by the executive

2. The collection above I 00% is due to increase of l'ees and charges during the tinancial year 2022-2023

l. Provide below a commentary on significant underutilization (below 90%,, oJ urilizution) untl uny overtt ilizctt ion (l?SAS 24 l4)

cash basis, stotement offinancial perfurmance is accruol) provitle a reconciliution.

n



Annual Reporl and Financial Statemcnts for the vear ended .Iune J0, 2023

18. Notes to the Financial Statenrents

l. General Information

Mombasa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund is established by and derives its authority and

accountability lrom Mombasa County Liquor Control Act was enacted in 2014. The entity is

wholly owned by the Mombasa County Government and is domiciled in Kenya. 1'he entity's

principal activity is:-

. Receive and consider applications for liquor Iicenses in accordance with the Act.

. Provide advice to the County Executive Committee on matters ol policy relating to

control and regulation of liquor.

. Collaborating with relevant govemment agencies for effective implementation ol the

Act.

. Carrying out public education in collaboration with other public and private players on

liquor control in the County.

. Involvement rvith citizen through public participation in matters related to liquor

control.

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Fund's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statements are

presented in Kenya shillings, rvhich is the functional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial

statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow statement is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.

3. Adoption of new and revised standards

(i) New and amended standords and interpretatioru in issue bul not yer effective in the year
ended 30 June 2023

Applicable: I't January 2023

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments

43
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The objective ol TPSAS 4l is to establish principles lor the financial

reporting o[ financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements lor their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty o[ an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users ol financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics ofthe asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope ol the guidance.

The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: lst January 2023

1'he objective o[ this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representat iveness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided shoutd hetp users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact ol such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financiaI performance, financial position and cash flows.

44
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Applicable: I't January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components ol borrorving costs which were inadvertently

omitted rvhen IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to TPSAS 30, regarding iilustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk rvhich were inadvertently omined

when IPSAS 4[ was issued.

c) Amendments to TPSAS i0, to update the guidance flor

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omined when IPSAS 4l rvas issued.

Amendments to IPSAS li, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption oI accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted rvhen IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from TPSAS

41, Financial

lnstrumerrts

Applicable I't lanuary 2023

. IPS/S 22 Disclosure of l'inancial Information aboul the General

Government Sector.

Amendments to reler to the latest System o[National Accounts (SNA

2008).

r IPSIS 39: Employee Benefits

Norv deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

. TPSAS 29l. Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 202 I IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't January 2023.

Other improvements

to IPSAS

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretatioru in issue but not yet e.ffect ive in the year

ended 30 June 2023

IPSAS 43

45
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out the principles flor the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure ol leases. The objective is

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant inlormation in a

manner that laithtully represents those transactions. This inlormation

gives a basis for users ol financial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cash

flows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right oIuse assets and lease tiabilities.

The standard sets

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

for Sale and

D iscontinued

Operations

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower oIcarrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation o[ such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as hetd for sale to be

presented separately in the statemcnt of financial position and the

results ofdiscontinucd operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial per[ormance.

Applicable l't January 2025

The Standard requires,

(iii)Early adoption of s ta nda rds

1'he Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year 2023
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{. Significant Accou nting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues tiom nor:-exchange transactions rvith other government entities are rreasured at lair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) iI
the transfer is free lrom conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service

potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

lntcrcst inconre

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated luture cash receipts through the expected life olthe financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

interest income each Period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's

right to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Renta[ income arising lrom operating leases on investment properties is accounted lor on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget in[ormation

The original budget flor FY 2023 was approved by the County Assembly on 3lstMarch, 2023.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in

accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional

appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective

approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

'l'he entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement offinancial performance,

whereas the budget is prepared on 4.cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were

recast from the aicrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on ftle same

basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a

comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison o[
budget and actual amounts.
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ummary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continucd)

In addition to the Basis dif[erence, adjustments to amounts in the tlnancial statements are also
ade lor differences in the tbrmats and classification schemes adopted lor the presentation of

he financial statcments and the approvcd budget

o
statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
mparison o[ budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement o[ financial
rformance has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

ll property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
mpairnent losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition oI
he items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
t intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
epreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
cognized in the canying amount ol the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
cognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

urplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
r nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its [air value

) Intangible Assets

ntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. -[he cost of intangible
ets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date o[ the exchange

ollowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
mortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets,
xcluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
urplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

he useful life olthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

) lnvestment property

nvestment propcrties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
mount includes the replacement cost olcomponents of an existing investment property at the

ime that cost is incurred it the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-
ay maintenance of an investment property. lnvestment property acquired through a non-
xchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial
cognilion, inveslment properlies are measured using lhe cost model and are depreciated over

n xx-year period or investment property is measured at fair value with gains and losses

cognised through surplus or deficit.(enlity lo omend appropriately) Investment properties

re derecognized cither when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is

anently withdrawn lrom use and no future economic benefit or service potential is

xpected from its disposal. The dillerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
mount of the asset is recognizcd in the surplus or deficit in the period ol de-recognition.

48



Monbasa Counly Alcoltolic Drink Conlrol Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statenrents for the year ended June J0' 2023

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f) Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules lor hedge accounting and a new impairment model

flor financial assets. Ihe entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new

hedge accounting nrles have no impact on the Company's financial statements. (Amend as

appropriatel. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset o[ one

entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the

entity measures a financial asset or financial Iiability at its lair value plus or minus, in the case

ofa financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction

costs that are directly anributable to the acquisition or issue oI the financial asset or financial

liability.

Financial assets

Classilication of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, lair value

through net assets/ equity or lair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics oI
the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is

held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ol the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments o[ principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity iI it is held

within the management model rvhose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit

unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity

has made irrevocable election at initial recognition flor particular investments in equity

instruments.

Su bsequent measu rement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories flor financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.
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umrnary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continuetl)

mortizcd cost

inancial assets that arc held lor coltection ol contractual cash tlows whcre those cash flows
present solely payments o[ principal and interest, and that are not designated at [air value

hrough surplus or deficit, are mcasured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that
s subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part ol a hedging relationship is
ecognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income lrom
hese financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held fbr collection ol contractual cash flows and flor selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at tair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the canying
amount are taken through net assets, except fior the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and loreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surpluVdeficit.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the eflective
interest rate method.

Fair value through su rplus or deficit

h'inancial assets that do not meet the criteria lor amortized cost or flair value through net assets/
equity are measured at lair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity
manages tlnancial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a lair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values lcss allowances lor any uncollectible
amounts. l'rade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the
year end.

Im pai rmen t

The entity assesses, on a lorward-looklng basis, thc expected credit loss ('ECL') associated
with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The
entity recognizes a loss allowance flor such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and
significant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are
set out in Nole xr.
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Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for the year endcd June 30' 202.1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Classilication

The entity classitles its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except lor

financial liabilities measured through profit or [oss.

g) I n ven tories

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the eKtent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (lor no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incuned in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted [or,

as lollolvs:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

D Finished goods and work in progress: cost oldirect materials and labour and a proportion

ol manulacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding

borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Horvever, to the extent that a class o[ inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or lor a

nominal charge, that class olinventory is measured at the lower oIcost and cunent replacement

cost.l..vet realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,

or distribution. [nventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or

consumption in the ordinary course of operations oflthe Entity.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result o[a past event, it is probabte that an outflow oIresources embodying economic benefits

or service potential witl be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obtigation. Where the Entity expects some or all o[ a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any

provision is presented in the statement o[ financial performance net of any reimbursement.

i) Social Benefits

Social bdnefits are cash transfers provided to (i) specific individuals and / or households that

meet the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of
society as a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

scheme at the same time that it recognises a liabitity. The liability for the social benefit scheme

is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the soclat benefit payments) that the entity will

incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.
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() lhusl Couttl's' Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
nnual Report antl Financial Statenrents for the year ended June J0, 202J

ummary of Significunl Accou,rling Policies (Continued)

) Contingent liabilities

he Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ol any contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the p<.rssibility of an outflow ol resources
mbodying economic benefits or service potcntial is remote

ontingent assets

e Entity does not recognize a contingcnt asset, but discloses detaits ofa possibte asset whose
xistence is contingent on the occunence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain luture
vents not whotly within the control ol thc Entity in the notes to the financial statements.
ontingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that dcvelopments are appropriately

reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow ol
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in
which the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entity to state the
reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects o[changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impract ical.

m) Employee benefits - Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits lor its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions ilthe fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to lund obligations tor the
payment o[ retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defincd bencfit funds are actuarially valucd tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. l'he contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.
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Sumnrury of Significant Accounling Policies (Continued)

n) Foreign cu rrency transactions

Transactions in loreign currencies are initially accounted lor at the ruling rate oIexchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in floreign currency are

reported at the statement ol financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

that date. Exchange diflerences arising lrom the settlement olcreditors, or lrom the reporting

olcreditors at rates dillerent tiom those at whrch they were initially recordeJ during the period,

are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part ol property, plant and

equipment. Such borrorving costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or constructed and bonowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction ol the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement o[
financial perlormance.

p) Related pa rties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members ol key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

C EO and senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to known amounts olcash and are subject to insignificant risk o[changes
in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at thc Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial banks at the end o[the financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial

statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

authorised public oflicers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end of the financial year.

r) Comparative figu res

Where necessary comparative figures lor the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conlorm to the required changes in presentation.
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fuIonibosa Counly Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
Annual Repo rt and Financial Statements for the year ended Junc J0,2021

Notes To The Financial Statcments (Continued)

20. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

2 l. Provisions

8,6t4,000Trade Payables

Relundable Deposits

Accrued Expenses

8,654,000I,959, r00Other Payables

10,613,100 8,654,000Total Trade and Other Payables

"/" of the
Total

Comparative
FY

Cu rren t
FY

Ageing analysis (Trade and other
payables)

xxx /o xxxUnder one year

xxx /or\x o//o

/oxxx /o xxx2-3 years

xxxKXXOver 3 years

rxx xxxTotal (tie to above total)

Balance At the Beginning Of The Year

Additional Provisions

(-) (-))( ( )Provision Utitised

(-) (-) ( )(-)
Change Due To Discount And Time Value

For Money

Transfers From Non -Cunent Provisions

Balance At The End ofThe Year

6-5

a

I)cscriptiott
zo22.2023 2tt2t-2022

K.shsK.shs

7o of the

Total

I -2 years

I)cscrilition
Lca vc

l)rovlsrort
: Ilon trs .

provision
()thcr
rovlslon ,T,iitir

Kslis KshsI(shs' K-ihs



Mombasa Coutrtl, Altoholic Drink Control Fund
Annual lLeport and Financial Statements for the year ended June J0, 2023

Notes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Intangible assets

19. Invcstment Propcrty

Cost

At Beginning of The Year

Additions

At End ofThe Year

Amortization And Impairment

At Beginning of The Year

Amortization

At End ofThe Year

lmpairment Loss

At End ofThe Year

NBV

At beginning of the year

Additions

Disposal during the year ( ) (-)

I)c rcciation (-) (-)

I mpairment (-) (-)

Cair/(loss) in lair value (ilfair value is elected)

At end of thc year

64

l) c-s'c rip t io n
2422-2023 2021-2022

I(shsKshs

I)cscriptiou 2022-202 _j 202 t -2022

Kshs Kshs
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Mombusu County Alcoholic Drink Control Futttl
Annual Report and Financial Statements lbr the year cntlcd June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Property, plant and equipnrent

At I " July (Previous 202 I ) l0 I,664 60,284 l6t 9{tt
Additions l T

Disposals (-) (-) (-)
Transfers/Adj ustments (-) (-) (-)
At 30'h June (Previous 2022) 42,199 l]r,t55
At I'r July (2022) 88,956 42,19.) t3l,l55
Additions
Disposals (-) (-)
Transfer/Adj ustments (-) (-) (-)
At 30'h June (2023)
Depreciation And Impairment
At l'r July (2021) (-) (-) ( r2,708) (3079J)
Depreciation (-) (-) (-)

( l8,o8s)
(-) (-)

lmpairment (-) (-)
At 30'h June (2022) 12,708 r 8,085 JO79J
At l"tJuly (2022)

Depreciation (-) (-) '7,625 6,029 ( r 3,654)
Disposals
lmpairment (-) (-) C)
Transfer/Adj ustment (-) (,
At 30'h June (2023)
Net Book Values
At 30'h June (2022) 88,956 12,191) l3 r, l55
Ar 30'h June (2023) 8l,Jl l J6, r 70 I 17,50 r

62

L:lrtl :rrrtl
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Monfiasu Counl-y Alcoholic Drink Conlrol F-und

Annual Repo rt and Financial Statements for the year ended June 10, 202.1

I6. Investments in financial assets

Movement of Equity Investmen ts

bills and trondsInvestment in Treasu

inancial institution
BK
BK
ub- total

b. Investment with Financial Institutions/ Banks

x

ub- total
ulc.E investments s cct

ub- total
C rand total

r

urchase of investments in the ar
(-)(-)thele of investments durin ar

n/(loss) in fair value of investments through surplus or
ficit

At the end of the year

e) Shareholding in other entities

Kshs Kshso, Kshs

Entity A
E,ntity B

Entity C

6l

I)esciipt ion
2022:2023. .20)I 2022

Kshs IGhS

Bank y

fv)
Equity/ shares in Entity xxx

2022-2023 2021:2022

Ksh.i Kshs

At the beginning of the

of
shaibs

tG'6f lf'aii value

PrioiI CurrcntEffcitivcDirect

Nanrc of

Indircct
shirchold i

held



Nlomhusa Coutrtl, Alcoltolic Drink Control !-unl
r\nnual Report and Financial Statemcnts ftr r the ycar endcd June J0, 202J

Additional disclosure on intcrest receivable

I 4. Prepay mcn ts

15. I nvcn tories

Notes to the Financial Statements Continucd

I n terest Receivable

lnterest receivable from current portion of long-term
loans of revlouS years

Accrued interest reDeivable from of long-term loans of
vlous vears

lnterest receivable from current portion ol long-term
loans issued in the cunent year

Current loan repaymen ts due

Current portion of long-term loans from prevrous years

Accrued principal from long+erms loans from previous
riods

Current portion of long+erm loans issued in the current
yeat

Prepaid Rent

Prepaid Insurance

Prepaid Electricity Costs

Other Prepayments (Spec ify)

Tota I

Consumable Stores

Spare Parts And Meters

Catering

Other Inventories (Specify)

Total [nventorics at The Lower of Cost and Net
Realizable Value

I
60

l)esiriplion
).022-2023 2021-2022

hslts Ks hs

l)cscriplion
2022-2023

Ksh s

I )rsc liption 2022-2023

Kshi

202t-2022

Iishs



illombastu County Alcoholic Drink (1;nlrol Fund
Annual Repo rt and Financial Statements for the year endcd June 30' 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as lollorvs

13. Receivables from exchange transactions

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

a) Fixed Deposits Accou nt

Kenya Commercial Bank

Equity Bank, Etc

Su b- Total

b) On - Call Deposits

Kenya Commercial Bank

Equity Bank - Etc

Sub- Total

c) Curren t Account
2,608 72,808I 171290918Kenya Commercial Bank

Bank B
72,8082,608Su b- Total

d) Others(Specify)

Cash [n Transit

Cash [n l-land

Su b- Total
72,8082,608Grand'l'otal

Current Receivables

lnterest Receivable

yments DueCurrent Loan

Other Exchange Debtors

(-)(-)Less: Impairment Allowance

Total Current Receivables

Non-Current Receivables

76,257,000I 15,198,250Long Term Other Exchange Debtors

Total Non- Current Receivables

I 15,198,250 76,257,000Total Receivables From Exchange Transactions

59

,l

Iiinrrnci:rl I nstitution Accou nt nu nrbcr
2022:.2023 20.21:2022

K.slis Kshs-

L)cscript iort
2022-2023 2021!2022I

I(shs I
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Iombostt Counly Alt'oholic Drink Control F-und
Annual Report and Financial Statcnrents for the ycar ended .lune 30, 202J

Investments at Fair Value- Equity investments
Fair value - Investment property
Irair value- other financial assets (specify)
Total Gain

12. Cash and cash equir.alents

Xxx Car Loan Account

Xxx County Mortgage Aocount

Fixed Deposits Account

On - Calt Deposits

Current r\ccount 2,608 72,808

Others (Specify)

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 2,(r08 72,808

58

Kshs Kshs

l)cscription
2022:2023

K,shs

2021-202).

K.shs
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An n ual Rcport and Financial Statements for thc year ended June 30' 202J

Rental Costs

Security Costs

Telephone And Communication Expenses

Bank Charges

Audit Fees

Provision For Doubtful Debts

Other (specity)

Social benefit expenses*

I,9Jt,000 I'769,000Total

8. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

9. Finance costs

I 0. Gain/(loss) on d isposal of assets

30,79ir3,654Property Ptant and Equipment

lntangible Assets

1J,65{ J0.'79JTotal

Interest On Bank Overdrafts

Interest On Loans From Banks

Property, Plant and Equipment

lntangible Assets

Total
I l. Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Investments

57

t

Monthasu County Alcolrolic Drink Conlrol Fund

I)csc rili t io n
2022-2023 202t.2022

KshS: I.ishs:

'2022,023

Kshs.

2021-2022

l)cscrilitioh
2$22-2023 202t'-2022

I(s hs KshS

Total

I zozt-2022. I , ,_______l)csdriptirrrt
2022-2023

Kshi

2022:2023 2021:2022



Nlombusu County Alcoltolk Drink Control f'und
Annual llcport and Financial Statenrents [or the year cnded June J0, 202J

Notes to thc F'inancial Statements Continued

5. Other income

6. Employee Costs

7. Use of Goods and Services

Insurance Recoveries

lncome from Sale of Tender Documents

Bad debts recovered

Miscellaneous Income

Total Other Income

Salaries And Wages

Staff Gratuitv

Social Security Contribution

Otder (Specify)

Total

General Office Expenses 70,000

Loan Processing Costs

Professional Services Costs

Administration Fecs

Committec Allowanccs l,862,800 r,769,000
Bank Charges 200

Electricity And Water Expenses

Fuel And Oil Costs

Insurance Costs

Postage And Courier

Printing And Stationcry

!

t
5(r

I) csc ription
2022-2023 2021-2022

I(shs Kshs

I)cscri;rtion
2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

Staff Training Expenses

I

I)cscription 2022-2023

Kshs.

2021-2022

Kshs.
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Momhasa County Akoholic Drink Conlrol Funtl '

Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for thc year ended June J0' 202J

6. Notes to The Financial Statements

l. Public contributions and donations

3. Fines, pcnalties and other levies

4. Interest income

Donation From Development Partners

Contributions From The Public

Total

Transfers From County Govt. -Operations

Payments By County On Behalf OtThe Entity

Unconditional Development grants

To tal

Late Payment Penalties

25,699,00039,211,450Fines ( registration oI outlets)

25,699,000J9,2 I 1,450Total

Interest lncome from Mortgage Loans

lnterest Income From Car Loans

lnterest Income From [nvestments in financial

assets

lnterest Income On Bank Deposits

Total Interest lncome

55

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

2. Transfers from County Government

I)cic rip t io n

I
202t]0222022-2023

I ..
Ihshr I 'Kshs

2021'-2022

KShs

2022-2023

Kshs

2021:2$22
l) esc riptio n

Kihs
I

2022-2023

Kshs

2022-2023

Krltr
Dc.siriptioir



Mombasa County Altttholic Drink Control Fund
Annual Report and F'inancial Statenrents frrr thc year endcd .lunc 30,, 202J

Summary of Significunt Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Signiticant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's tlnancial statements in conflormity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
ol revenues, expcnses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure ol contingent tiabitities, at the
end olthe reporting period. Flowever, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
resutt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in luture periods.

State alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made e.g.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources o[estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the canying
amounts of assets and liabitities rvithin the neKt financial year, are described betow. The Entity
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated ftnancial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions rvhen they occur. tpsAS I . 140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

The uselul lives and residual valucs ol assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inlorm potential luture use and value flrom disposal:

) The condition of the asset based on the assessment oIexperts employed by the Entity

D The nature oIthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

D I'he nature oIthe processes in which the asset is deptoyed

F Availability of funding to replace the asser

F Changes in the market in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's bcst estimate olthe expenditure required to settle
the obligation at thc reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

(Include provision.s applicable for your organisation e.g provisionfor bad debts, provisions of
obsolete stocl<s and how manogement estimales lhese provisions)

I
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onthtsa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund
nnual Report and Financial Statcments for thc year entled June J0, 202J

otes to The Financial Statemcnts (Continucd)

2. Borrowings

e table belorv shorvs the classification olborrowings into external and domestic borrowings

e table below shows the classification of borrowings long-term and current bonowings

Balance At Beginning of The Period

External Borrowings During the Year

Domestic Borrowings During the Year

Repayments Of External Borrorvings During the
Period (-) (-)
Repayments Of Domestics Borrowings During the
Period )( (-)

Balance At End of The Period

External Bo rrorvings

Dollar Dcnominated Loan From'X Organization'
Sterling Pound Denominated Loan From 'Y
Organization'

Euro Denominated Loan lrom Z Organization'

Domestic Borrowings

Kenya Shilling [.oan From KCB

Kenya Shilling [,oan lrom Barclays Bank

Kenya Shilling [-oan lrom Consolidated Bank

Borrowings From Other Government [nstitutions

Total Balance at End ofThe Year

Short Term Borr.owings (Cunent Portion)

[,ong Term Borrowings

Total

66

I

l

2022-2$1.3
[)escription

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

Dcscriptirrrr
2r)2: -l0:_1 2021-201?.

Kslrs K-shs

2021-2022
[) c-ss 1i p1;t)n
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ful o nthas a Co tt rtt), A lcrt lt o l' c D r i n k Co n I rol F u n d
Annual Repo rt and Financial Statcnrcnts for the ycar cndcd .lune J0, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continucd)

2J. Employee bencfit obligations

24. Social Benefit Liabilities

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Current Benefit
Obligation
Non-Cunent
Benefit Obtigation

Total

I I i,749,li9104,905,259Health socia[ benefit scheme

Unemployment social benefit scheme

Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary social benefits

Tota I

Current social benefits

Non- current social benetlts

Total (tie to totals above)

a

I
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'.l)csciiirtion
'I)cfinid
,fi"n"r,i

. .l!:osl ..
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rit irrulical
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Kshs
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ll[orrrbttsu Coutrty Alcoholit. Drink Control l,-und
r\nnual lleport and Financial Statements for the year ended .lune J0, 202J

Notes to the F'inancial Statcments (Continued)

25. Cash generated from operations

Surplus/ (Dcficit) For the Year Before Tax 37,264,996 r 2,210,J67

Adjusted For:

Depreciation ri,654 i0,79i
Amort isation

GainV Losses On Disposal O[Assets ( ) (-)
lnterest lncome ( ) (-)

Finance Cost

Working Capital Adjustments

Increase In lnventory (-) (-)

(ie,2 r 1,450) (25,699,000)

lncrease In Payables 9i,600 9,213,200

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities ( l,8Je,200) (4,2{4,640)
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Dc:;c ription
2022-2023

Kshs

21121-2022

Kslrs

lncrease In Receivables
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Momhasu County Alcohttlic Drink Control Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemcnts for the year ended June 30, 202J

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

26. Related party balances

a) Nature o[ related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Fund include those parties who have ability to exercise

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related

parties include management personnel, their associates and close lamily members. The

flund/scheme is retated to the lollowing entities:

a) The County Covernment;
b) The Parent County Govemment Ministry;
c) Key management;
d) Board oI Trustees; etc.

b) Rclated pa rty transactions

d) Due from related parties

I

Translers From Related Parties'

Transfers To Related Paaies

Board OITrustees

Key Management Compensation

Tota I

Due From Parent Ministry

Due From County Covernment

To tal I

(t9

c) Key management remuneration

2022-2,023

KShi

202't.,022

l)cscription
2022,21123

Kshs

2022-2023

Kslils

2fi2L-2022

IGhs^
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Mombasa Counly Alcolrolic Drink Control Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts for the

Other Disclosures Continued

e) Due to related parties

7. Contingcnt assets and contingent liabilities

year ended .lune 30, 202J

Due To Parent Ministry

Due To County Government

Due To Key Management Personnel
'[otal

Court Case Xxx Against the Fund

Bank Guarantees

Total

70

2022-2023 2021-2022
l)cscription

Kshs I(shs

Corrtingcnl Liabilitics
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs
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Notcs To The Financial Statements (Continucd)

28. Financial risk management

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety o[ financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects ol changes in fbreign currency. The Fund's overall risk management programme
flocuses on unpredictability olchanges in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels o[ risk.

The Fund does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only
extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in [ull rvhen due. Credit risk arises flrom cash and cash equivatents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivabtes and availab te- for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality ol each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other lactors. [ndividual risk limits are set based on intemal or
external assessment in accordance ',vith limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allorvances for doubttul receivables, estimated by
the entity's management based on prior experience and their assessment ol the current
economic environment. 'fhe canying amount of llnancial assets recorded in the financial
statements reprcsenting the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
oIthe vatue of any collateral obtained is made up as lollows:

a

I

At l0 Junc 202J

Receivables From Exchange

Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

Tota I

At 30 June 2022

Receiv4bles From Exchange
Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balanccs

Total

I I

7l

I)cscription
'l otal
altlount
Kshs

Fully
pcrforrn irrg 

I

l'risf duc -l Inr priircrl
Kshs Kih.s Ksh.i
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At 30 Junc 2023

Trade Payables

Current Portion OI Borrowings

Provisions

Employee Benefi t Obligation

Total

At 30 Junc 2022

frade Payables

Current Portion Of Borrowings

Provisions

Employce Benefi t Obl igation

Iotal

I
I

I

ol busa (lount), Alcoholic Drink Control F-und
nnual Report and ['inancial St:rtenrents for the ycar endcd .Iune 10,, 202J

otes To'fhe Financial Statenrents (Continued)

e customers under the lully pcrforming category are paying their debts as they continue
rading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
ncollectible amounts that the entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered
equate to cover any potentiallv irrecoverable amounts

he board ol trustees sets the Fund's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
ithin which the various aspects olcredit risk management are operated

) Liquidity risk management

timate rcsponsibiliry for liquidity risk management rests rvith the Fund Administrator, rvho
s built an appropriate tiquidity risk management framework for the management o[ the
tity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidiry management requirements. The
tity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring ol forecasts and actuaI cash flows.

a

e table below represents cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial
bilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the repgrting date. l'he anlounts

isclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances dLre rvithin l2
onths equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant

72

Ilctrvccn l-
J nronths . TotalI)cscriptiun

Kshs

l,cs.s th:rn I

nronth

K^shS Kshs

Ovcr 5
nronths

K.shs
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Notes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Market risk

The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk laced by

the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness ol its intemal

accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising lrom changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and loreign exchange rates rvhich rvill aft'ect the entity's income or the value of its holding ol
tlnancial instruments. The objective ol market risk management is to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall
responsibility lor managing market risk rests with thc Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Fund's Finance Department is responsible tbr the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to revierv and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and lor the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currcncy risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases ol
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. lnvoices

denominated in loreign currencies are paid after i0 days lrom the date of the invoice and

conversion dt the time ofpayment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount ol the entity's loreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the end oIthe reporting period are as lollows:

a

I

At J0 June 202J

Financial Assets

Cash

Debtors/ Receivables

Lia bilities

Trade And Other Payables

Borrowings

Net Foreign Cu rrency AsseU( Lia bility)

7l

ra

Kshs

( )the r .

cu rrencres

'Kslts
LI!

Kshs

lnvestments
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oreign cu rrency sensitivity analysis

he follorving table demonstrates thc e flt'ect on thc Fund's statement of financial perlormance
n applying the sensitivity lor a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate o[ the three
ain transaction currencies, rvith all other variables held constant. The reverse rvould also
cur ilthe Kenya Shilling appreciated rvith all other variables held constant

I n tcrcst ratc risk

terest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a
sult o[changes in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.
is exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. 'l'he interest rate risk exposure arises

ainly lrom interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits

anagement of inleresl rale risk

o manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
C r favourable intcrest rates

nsilivity analysis

he Fund analyses its intercst rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
a lysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The

nsitivity analysis lor intcrcst rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular loreign
hange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the

p or year. Using thc end olthe year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the
tement of comprehensivc income ifcurrent floating intcrcst rates increase/decrease by one
rcentage point as a decrease/increase o[ Kshs xxx (2022: Kshs xxx ). A rate increase/decrease
5oZ would result in a decrease/increase in profit before tax of Kshs xxx (202 I - Kshs xxx).

2022-2023

Euro t0%

t0%

z02t-2022

Euro t0%

USD t0%

o

74

Changc in

currcncv rx tc

[]fl cct on su rplus/
dc l'icit Effect on

equitl'Description

K.slrs Kshs Kshs

USD
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Notes to The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Capital risk management.

The objective o[ the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises olthe [ollowing funds

29. Events after the reporting period

Therc were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

30. Ultimate and Holding EntifY

The entity is a County Public Fund established by Mombasa County Atcohotic Act ot20l4
under the County Government of Mombasa. Its ultimate parent is the County Govemment o[
Mombasa.

31. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

Revaluation reserve

Revolving fund

Accumulated surplus

Total funds

Total borrowings

( ) ( )Less: cash and bank balances

Net debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents)

/o o//oGea ring

a

I75

a

Dcscription
2022:2023 ,202L-.2022

Kshs Kitrs
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19. Annexcs

Annex I: Progress on Follow Up Of Prior Year Auditor's Recommendations

The following is the summary o[ issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

uilance Noles:

i) Use the same referencc numbers as contained in the external audit report.

ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management.

iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons rvithin your Fund responsible for implementation of each issue.

iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date olsubmitting this report

to National Treasury. /

tund Adnrinistration

A-- \1fr?-aN.tLP' C o>\4 fi-
ate ul:qJz*zt

7(t

llclt'rcncc
\o. on thc
crlcrnai

aurlit llcport

l.ssuc /
()bsen'irtions

from r\urlitor

Stirtus: 
.

(llcsolvcd /
Nol

Rasolt,ctl)

'l'inrefranrc:

(l'ut u tluta
Itt'ltctt.l'ou

e-tpat't lhe issut
Io ha rcsolvttl)

ill anage nrcn t

co nr rncrtts
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Annex lI: Inter-Fund Conlirmation Lctter
I I nse rt yo ur Lette rheudl

pnsert name ofbeneJiciary Fundl
pnsert Addressl
The [insert SC/SAGA/Fund name here] wishes to conflrm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30'h June 20xx as indicated in the table below. Please

compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below l)lease sign and starnp this
request in the space provided and return it to us.

CpA $rs\.^o (.^*n

I

A

,t

I

at 30rr'June 2023Amounts Disbursed by ISC/SACA/Fund] (Kshs) as

lnter-
M in isteria I

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

Amount lleceived
by Ibeneliciary

Fund]
(KShs) as at 30'r'

June 20xx
(E)

Dif't'erences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

Developrnent (B)Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A)

Total

ln confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of thc date indicated

Head of Accpuntants department of beneficiary

*"* sD3)k\ /d h\\r))ir sr

Fund:

gn ... [...............r"," . 3Sr.].\' )-.o aZ

lClxt rrMr.nhu "n art 52

77

t
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Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Qr Q2 Q3 Q4

78

I)roj ect
N:rnrc

I

P roj cct
Dcscri n

ProjcCt
0hiectives

I) ro.ie ct
Actir.ilics

Sou rce Of
Iiuntls

I nr p lcnrcn ting
I)ltrtncrs
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Annex IV: Reporting on l)isaster Managetnent Expenditurc

lr)

,-.-l

4

-t'otlirnn 
it

'' 
Colurnn M Colulni V, CoiLrmn VI Column

vlt .

Prograrnrne Sub- l)isrrstcr
'l'y 

Pc

('xtc r-loi \ o1' clisastel lc lltc'rl Ac t i r, itv ilnt
t cr;t,it c ctllclt.iitttrc tc;,r ,rtittl
(rcspc,nsc rcc ovr'r-r','rr it iqat ion/p rcpa icd ness )

Aln o unt
(t(shs,)

C orl rne nts
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